
    

 
Notice of a public  
Decision Session - Executive Member for Finance and Performance 
 
To: Councillor Ayre (Executive Member) 

 
Date: Friday, 14 February 2020 

 
Time: 1.30 pm 

 
Venue: The Thornton Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G039) 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Notice to Members – Post Decision Calling In: 
 
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democratic Services by 4.00pm 
on Tuesday 18 February 2020. 
 
*With the exception of matters that have been the subject of a 
previous call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are 
not subject to the call-in provisions. Any items that are called in will be 
considered by the Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny 
Management Committee. 

 
Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be 
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on Wednesday 12 
February 2020. 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member is asked to 

declare: 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests 

 any prejudicial interests or 

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 



 

 
2. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 8) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the Decision Session held on 

16 December 2019, the Joint Decision Session held on 13 January 
2020 and the Joint Budget Decision Session held on 15 January 
2020. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered to speak can do so. The deadline for registering is 
5.00pm on Thursday 13 February 2020. Members of the public 
can speak on agenda items or matters within the Executive 
Member’s remit. 
 
To register to speak please contact the Democracy Officer for the 
meeting, on the details at the foot of the agenda. 
 
Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings 
Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will 
be filmed and webcast, or recorded, including any registered 
public speakers who have given their permission. The broadcast 
can be viewed at http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts or, if 
recorded, this will be uploaded onto the Council’s website 
following the meeting. 
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting.  Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact the Democracy Officer (contact details are at the 
foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present.  It can be viewed at  
 
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webc
asting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809  
 
 
 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809


 

4. Proposal to offer a conditional 2 year lease 
extension to Spark:York for 17-21 Piccadilly   

(Pages 9 - 20) 

 The report sets out a proposal to grant a further lease of 17-21 
Piccadilly to Spark:York, when their existing lease expires on 30th 
June 2020, until March 2022 when the site will be needed for 
redevelopment as part of the Castle Gateway regeneration. 
 

5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Executive Member considers 

urgent under the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officer: 
Name: Angela Bielby 
Telephone: (01904) 552599 
Email: a.bielby@york.gov.uk 
 
For more information about any of the following, please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
Contact details are set out above. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for Finance 
and Performance  

Date 16 December 2019 

Present Councillor Ayre (Executive Member) 

  

 
28. Declarations of Interest  
 
The Executive Member was invited to declare, at this point in the meeting, 
any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests, or any 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests, which he might have in the 
business on the agenda. No additional interests were declared. 
 
 
29. Minutes  
 
Resolved:  That the minutes of the Executive Member for Finance and 

Performance Decision Sessions held on 18 November and 26 
November 2019 be approved and then signed by the Executive 
Member as a correct record. 

 
 
30. Public Participation  
 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the meeting 
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
 
31. Health & Safety Interim Report 2019/20  
 
 The Executive Member considered a report which presented the Interim 
Report relating to the work of the Health & Safety (H&S) shared service 
which operated on behalf of City of York Council (CYC) and North 
Yorkshire County Council (NYCC). The shared service had been in 
operation since July 2017 and operated under a collaboration agreement. 
The report provided an update on H&S incidents and the annual review 
of the City of York Council H&S Policy.  The report also presented 
proposals for changes to the Collaboration Agreement and 
recommended a change to the current surplus sharing agreement for 
traded services. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 2



 
The Assistant Director for Customer and Digital Services and Shared Head 
of Health and Safety were in attendance to present the report. The 
Assistant Director for Customer and Digital Services outlined the report 
noting the progress of the Health and Safety Service. The Shared Head of 
Health and Safety gave a detailed overview of the changes to the CYC 
Health and Safety Policy Statement (Annex B) noting a push in culture 
change around the acceptability of violence and aggression to CYC 
employees. He then summarised the activity of the Health and Safety 
Service as detailed in Annex A. The Assistant Director Customer and 
Digital Services outlined the business case to change the surplus sharing 
agreement identifying that  the management of the schools health and 
safety service would  move to North Yorkshire to be supported by the 
commercial arm of NYCC, that this would reduce the financial risk of future 
losses and the advantages of this to the  shared service in terms of 
providing a sustainable workforce for CYC but without the risk.  
 
The Executive Member then: 
 
Resolved: That;    

a) The Interim Report including the work of the Shared Health 
and Safety (H&S) Service be noted.  

 
b) The Corporate Health and Safety Policy be endorsed. 

 
c) The proposed changes to City of York Council/North 

Yorkshire County Council (CYC/NYCC) Collaboration 
Agreement be agreed to include: 

 minor administrative changes to the report to, for 
example, to reflect changes in legislation; 

 the change to the surplus sharing agreement. 
 
Reason:  To ensure the Executive Member and residents are assured 

that H&S services are resilient and the council has proper 
arrangements in place for managing and responding to H&S 
risks.  

 
 
32. Approval of YFAS furniture & white goods contract with a whole 
life contract value of over £250k  
 
The Executive Member considered a report that presented a proposal to 
tender the York Financial Assistance Scheme (YFAS) furniture and white 
goods contract. This had been defined as a routine procurement as per the 
council’s contract procedure rules and the expenditure would fall within 

Page 2



existing revenue budget provision. The decision-making route was through 
the Executive member given the level of expenditure and required 
transparency around such procurements. The tendering of the YFAS 
furniture and white goods contract was set out in Annex A of the report. 
 
The Assistant Director for Customer and Digital Services outlined the 
report. She highlighted that the current provider the community furniture 
store offered a range of new items and noted that all payments were made 
directly to the store rather than the YFAS claimant. She further noted that 
there was a £191k spend on the YFAS furniture and white goods contract 
in 2018/9. 
 
The Executive Member then: 
 
Resolved:  That the tendering of the York Financial Assistance Scheme 

(YFAS) furniture and white goods contract as set out in Annex 
A be approved. 

 
Reason:   To ensure that Councillors approve routine procurement 

decisions over £250k in value in line with procurement 
regulations and the public have the opportunity to see 
transparent decision-making in operation relating to major 
procurements. 

 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Ayre, Executive Member 
[The meeting started at 3.00 pm and finished at 3.14 pm]. 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for Finance 
and Performance in conjunction with the Executive 
Member for Environment and Climate Change 

Date 13 January 2020 

Present Councillors Ayre (Executive Member for Finance 
and Performance) and Widdowson (Executive 
Member for Environment and Climate Change) 

  

 
33. Declarations of Interest  
 
The Executive Members were invited to declare, at this point in the 
meeting, any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests, or 
any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests, which they might have in 
the business on the agenda. No additional interests were declared. 
 
 
34. Minutes  
 
Resolved:  That the minutes of the Executive Member for Finance and 

Performance Decision Session held on 16 December 2019 be 
approved and then signed by the Executive Member as a 
correct record. 

 
 
 
35. Public Participation  
 
It was reported that there had been one registration to speak at the meeting 
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
Martina Weitsch, a Member of the Green Party, and York resident, spoke 
on Agenda Item 4: Green Energy Tariff. She applauded the council for 
deciding to make an investment in green energy and as a demonstration of 
its commitment to the declaration of a climate emergency. She encouraged 
the investment in companies that invest in green energy at the end of the 4 
year contract. She urged the move away from reliance on fossil fuels and 
investment in renewable energy between the end of the existing contract 
and beginning of the new contract. Her comments were noted by the 
Executive Members. 

Page 5



36. Green Energy Tariff  
 
The Executive Members considered a proposal to adjust the electricity 
contract to the Npower green energy tariff commencing 1 April 2020. The 
Head of Property Design and Facilities Management was in attendance to 
present the report. He explained that the corporate electricity contract with 
Npower commenced on 1 April 2019 for 4 years and within this contract 
was the option to adjust to a green electricity tariff. The impact of this was 
extra annual expenditure of circa £7,000 split down into CYC buildings, 
York Explore, Schools, and Street Lighting as shown in paragraph 12 of the 
report. He added that the consumption figures were based on 2018/9 data 
and that the change to the green energy tariff overall provided benefit to 
carbon neutrality. 
 
The Executive Members thanked officers for their work on the paper and 
noted that the council was continuing to look at different areas for the 
delivery of sustainability in an affordable way. They further asked that in 
regard to commissioning work for residential and adult social care, that 
sustainability was placed on the frameworks for them. 
 
Resolved:  That the Executive Members:  
 

i. Approve a change to the corporate electricity contract from April 
1st 2020 to the green energy tariff.  

 
ii. Instruct officers to consult with Schools and other partners who 

access this contract and seek their approval to switch to the 
green tariff. 

 
Reason:  To allow City of York Council to undertake steps to deliver 

actions as in relation to the Council Plan. 
 
 
 
 
Cllr N Ayre, Executive Member for Finance and Performance 
[The meeting started at 3.00 pm and finished at 3.15 pm]. 

Page 6



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Joint Budget Decision Session - Executive 
Leader (incorporating Policy, Strategy and 
Partnerships) and finance and Performance 

Date 15 January 2020 

Present Councillors Aspden and Ayre (Executive 
Members) 

 

6. Declarations of Interest  
 

The Executive Members were asked to declare, at this point in the meeting, 
any personal interests, not included on the Register of Interests, or any 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests that he might have had in 
respect of business on the agenda. None were declared.  

 
7. Public Participation  

 
It was reported that there had been two registrations to speak under the 
council’s Public Participation Scheme.  
 
Gwen Swinburn thanked the Executive for agreeing to hold these Joint 
Budget Decision Sessions, but questioned whether sufficient detail around 
savings had been included within the meeting papers. She also raised 
several quires regarding the Capital Budget and asked if smaller capital 
projects could go to Executive Member Decision Sessions for approval.  
 
Janice Gray raised questions about why York Theatre Royal was being 
assigned funds in the council budget? 
 
The Executive Members noted that York Theatre Royal was a National 
Portfolio Organisation and that it would therefore receive funding from the 
Art Council as long as City of York Council was also making a financial 
contribution.  
 
8. Financial Strategy 2020/21 to 2024/25  
 
Officers introduced a report on the Financial Strategy for 2020/21 to 

2024/25. Key areas in the report were discussed including the capital 

budget. It was noted that there was an amendment to make to annex 4, 

paragraph 107 of the agenda that the ICT Capital Program was receiving 

an increase of £350k (not £250k) from years 21/22 onwards to reflect the 

increased demand. Officers outlined what had been done to consult both 

Page 7



residents and business in the city as part of the budget process. Executive 

Members requested that further detail on business’ responses to the 

consultation be included when the Financial Strategy is brought to the 

meeting of the Executive.  

The Executive Members confirmed when the budget is presented at Budget 

Council meeting on 27 February 2020 it would include a detailed equality 

impact assessment.  

Resolved: 

i. That the feedback from consultation for Leader (incorporating 

Policy, Strategy and Partnerships) and Finance and 

Performance portfolios, as set out in Annex 3 to the report, be 

noted; 

ii. That the following be agreed for inclusion within the overall 

financial strategy to be presented to Executive on 13 February 

2020: 

 

a) The 2020/21 revenue savings proposals for Leader 

(incorporating Policy, Strategy and Partnerships) and 

Finance and Performance portfolios, as set out in Annex 1 

to the report. 

b) The 2020/21 revenue growth proposals for Leader 

(incorporating Policy, Strategy and Partnerships) and 

Finance and Performance portfolios, as set out in Annex 2 

to the report. 

c) The new schemes for inclusion in the Capital Strategy as 

set out in annex 4 to the report.  

 

Reason:  To ensure that stakeholders have the opportunity to feed into 

the budget process in advance of the finalisations of the 

Financial Strategy 2020/21 to 2024/25. 

 
 

 

Cllr. K Aspden, Executive Leader (incorporating Policy, Strategy and 
Partnerships) 
 
 
 
Cllr. N Ayre, Executive Member Finance and Performance 
[The meeting started at 5.32 pm and finished at 5.56 pm]. 

Page 8



 

 

  
 

   

 
 14 February 2020 

Executive Member for Finance and 
Performance Decision Session 

 

 

 Report of the Director of Economy and Place 
 

  Proposal to grant a further 2 year lease to Spark:York for 17-21 Piccadilly 
site 
 
Summary 
 

1. The report sets out a proposal to grant a further lease of 17-21 Piccadilly 
to Spark:York, when their existing lease expires on 30th June 2020, until 
March 2022 when the site will be needed for redevelopment as part of the 
Castle Gateway regeneration. 

2. It is proposed that this further lease would only be granted when: (a) 
Spark York are in full compliance with the existing planning permission 
and (b) only if and when they obtain planning permission for continued 
use of the site for its present use for the duration of the further lease.  The 
current planning permission will expire on 1st July 2020 unless the council 
as Local Planning Authority (LPA) grants an extension prior to that date. 

   

3. Granting the proposed further lease will maintain the benefits of the 
existing lease to create footfall and economic vibrancy within the Castle 
Gateway area and continue to provide start up business development 
space for SMEs in the city centre until the site is ready for redevelopment. 
The short term nature of the proposal will not affect the council’s proposal 
to deliver redevelopment on the site as part of the Castle Gateway 
scheme.  
 

4. The new lease will contain additional conditions to prohibit noise nuisance 
and provide the council with greater financial security. 

    

Page 9 Agenda Item 4



 

 
Recommendations 
 

5. The Portfolio Holder is asked to agree: 
 

i. To offer Spark York a new lease for the use of 17-21 Piccadilly 
from 1st July 2020 until 31st March 2022 (at basic rent of £13,333 
per annum payable monthly in advance rather than annually in 
arrears, plus an additional rent equal to 30% of Spark’s annual 
profit payable at the end of each year) to continue to operate a 
shipping container development for start-ups and street food, 

ii. That the new lease will require Spark: York will to pay a 
Bond/Deposit sum of £5,000 to the council towards securing 
compliance with the tenant’s obligations in the new lease (such as 
payment of rent)  

iii. That the new lease will require a director of Spark:York to act as 
guarantor for the performance by Spark:York of the tenant’s 
obligations in the new lease 

iv. That the new lease will contain a clause setting out the council’s 
right to terminate the lease should Spark/the tenant breach their 
obligations in the lease (including breaching planning laws) 

v. That the new lease will specifically preclude Spark:York from 
running amplified live music or DJ sessions in the evening  

vi. That the new lease will only be granted if and when: 
(a) Spark:York are in full compliance with all of the conditions 

to the site’s existing planning permission, cladding the units 
and controlling noise nuisance. 

(b) Spark:York obtain an extension from the LPA of the  validity 
period of the existing planning permission from 1st July 
2020 to 31st March 2022. 

(c) Spark:York have settled all existing debts to the council. 
 
Reason:  To allow the continued use of 17-21 Piccadilly to support 
SME businesses and create footfall and economic activity in advance 
of the long term redevelopment of the Caste Gateway scheme. 

 
   

Background 
 
6. In November 2016 Executive approved that Spark:York be granted a lease 

of 17/21 Piccadilly following the demolition of the redundant building on site 
earlier that year. During the summer of 2016, the Council explored various 

Page 10



 

alternative temporary uses for the site with a view of bringing it in to use in 
the short term and animate the area.  
 

7. Other uses were explored with partner organisations including Make it York, 
The BiD, and Jorvik Viking Centre but they did not feel able to take the site 
on in the short term. Whilst these discussions were ongoing the council 
were approached by a Community Interest Company (CIC) called 
Spark:York who were interested in finding a site for pop-up development 
providing start-up spaces for social enterprises and new businesses. They 
subsequently submitted a business plan to the council for 17-21 Piccadilly. 

 
8. The proposal was based upon the success of other similar schemes in 

London such as Pop Brixton, Boxpark Shoreditch and The Artworks 
London. Other schemes have since followed such as in Stack Newcastle in 
the Haymarket area.  These have all become destinations in their own right 
as vibrant and creative hubs that attract people in to the area.  
 

9. Spark:York were awarded a 3 year lease and successfully applied for 
planning permission (Ref 17/00274/FUL) and were granted temporary 
permission for use of the site until the end of June 2020. Their fund raising 
and construction works were undertaken and they started to trade on the 
site in May 2018. 
 

10. The Spark scheme has provided street food kiosks, retail, shared 
workspaces, meeting room, performance spaces and public workspace. It 
has provided space for a considerable number of start-up businesses in 
York and a number of these have been very successful and outgrown their 
space in York, resulting in them expanding to take space on a permanent 
basis within the city centre.  This has included the occupation of space 
within the council’s commercial property portfolio. The facility is currently 
occupied by 16 businesses and host a range of events and provides shared 
space.  There are currently 5 vacant units. 
 

11. The following outcomes are taken from Spark’s request for a further lease: 
 

 In 18 months of operation Spark as a project has to date supported 12 
businesses in taking on permanent premises, with 85% of those 
businesses taking a premises in York City centre. 

 On average each business within the Spark site has taken on 3 
members of staff, with a mix of full time and part time positions. Overall 
this equates to an increase of 60 FTE positions in the local economy.  

 Spark itself has also cultivated an additional 5 FTE roles. 

Page 11



 

 The project has given business opportunities to 40 start-up businesses in 
York, that have supported the local economy with up to £500,000 in 
strengthening local supply chains. 

 The site wide turnover (a cumulative figure of turnover across all 
businesses situated on the site) is now close to £3,000,000 since 
opening in May 2018.  

 Spark has hosted over 500 free or pay as you feel community events, 
ranging as a permanent home of two residents’ associations, over 15 
hours of free community events a week, while hosting more prominent, 
financially inclusive events for the community.  

 Spark hosts 100 community groups each year who use the space either 
on a discounted or free basis. 

  It was also the host venue for the inaugural York Design Week and York 
Dead Good Festival, the host for York Food Poverty Alliance in which a 
zero-waste supermarket and food bank operates and will be the first 
contactless point for homeless donation with York BID and Two Ridings 
Community Foundation (York Street Aid);  

 It has been a regular venue for events relating to My Castle Gateway 
and consultation events for the future of the area 

 It has been a venue for Aesthetica Film Festival, York Mediale and 
features in the Visit York Christmas Guide 2019. 

 Spark will continue to support new business creation and ensure they 
have the space and time to ultimately grow and move into a permanent 
unit.  

 Spark will continue to offer a destination to residents and visitors of the 
city, supporting city-centre regeneration and footfall generation, 
particularly as Piccadilly emerges as an improved and more well-used 
street. 

 
Castle Gateway 
 

12. In January 2020 Executive agreed a workplan for the delivery of the Castle 
Gateway regeneration which will see further design work undertaken for a 
permanent development on the current site of Spark:York. This programme 
of work will result in no on site development activity until at least April 2022. 
If Spark are not granted a further lease then this would result in the site 
being empty and unused for c 2 years.  
 

13. The activity generated by Spark:York has been a positive addition to the 
vision for the broader Castle Gateway site, bringing economic activity, 
footfall and vibrancy into an area that is now showing real signs of 
redevelopment and uplift. It would be undesirable to see the 17-21 

Page 12



 

Piccadilly site standing empty once again. The Castle Gateway team are 
therefore supportive of an extension to the temporary use providing that the 
lease does not delay any future redevelopment on 17-21 Piccadilly. 
 

Request for Further Lease  
 

14. Spark has advised the Council that they would like to continue the operation 
for a further period on expiry of the current lease, which ends at the end of 
June this year.  Spark advise that given the impending expiry of their lease, 
that this has led to a reduced demand for the units and concern amongst 
existing occupiers.  The uncertainty created has resulted in a reluctance by 
would be occupiers to take units, given the investment needed to fit out a 
unit.  The scheme has been well let throughout the operation of the facility 
and has attracted foot fall to the site. They have advised that throughout 
their operation, demand for the units has been strong and that since the 
possibility of Spark being granted a further lease has been publicised, they 
have been contacted by operators expressing an interest in taking on space 
within the vacant units.  

 
15. Profit share/rent – Prior to Spark’s occupation, the land was previously 

unused land with few amenities and no rent received. To help de-risk the 
project, whilst also enabling the site for future development, the council 
agreed to provide the initial cost of providing services/infrastructure to the 
site. This was initially estimated at £40,000 and ultimately has led to council 
expenditure of £38,680 on utility supplies which formed the basis of the 
basic rent that Spark would pay. This investment was to be repaid in 3 base 
rent instalments of £13,333 at the end of each year. The first instalment has 
been paid and the next ones are due in March 2020 and at the end of the 
current lease in June 2020. These payments must be made before any new 
lease comes into place and will fully recoup the costs incurred on the site.   
 

16. The proposed new lease will require Spark to continue to pay £13,333 per 
annum during the term of the new lease. 
 

17. The current lease also obliged Spark to pay as ‘additional rent’ at the end 
of each year a sum equal to 30% of any profit generated by Spark from the 
site within the preceding 12 month period.  It should be noted that this does 
not relate to the turnover of the units on the site quoted by Spark at c£3m. 
Spark made a loss in their first year of trading due to the front loading of 
their start-up costs and repayment of loans over a short period and hence 
the Council received no profit share.  Their view is that in the 2nd full year of 
trading they will record a small loss and then make a profit in the following 
year once the loans have been repaid.   

Page 13



 

 
18. Under the new proposed lease, the council would similarly share any profit 

on top of its base rent at a figure as existing i.e 30%. If there are no profits, 
the Council would purely receive the base rent, being £13,333pa. 

 
Planning Issues 

 
19. Whilst the scheme has been successful in delivering a range of economic 

and social benefits there remain concerns regarding failure to comply with 
the conditions of the planning consent regarding the provision of timber 
cladding on the units.  This condition has not yet been complied with. Spark 
have indicated that they are unable to secure further capital loan funding at 
this stage to enable them to comply with planning, without an extension to 
their lease.  
 

20. The proposed further lease will not be granted unless Spark:York install the 
cladding by the 31st March 2020. If they fail to do this then a new lease will 
not be granted   and their tenancy will be end when the current lease expires 
on 30th June 2020. 

 
21. There have been a number of ongoing neighbour complaints from nearby 

residential properties regarding the level of noise being generated from 
amplified music on the site. The noise issues have breached the planning 
conditions placed upon Spark:York to protect residential amenity for local 
residents and enforcement action is being considered. This issue seems to 
be particularly linked to evening DJ sessions run by Spark:York and this is 
not an acceptable situation going forward.  
 

22. This issue has been discussed with Spark:York.  The proposed further 
lease will (like the current lease) oblige the tenant/Spark to comply with laws 
and regulations (including relating to planning) and prohibiting them from 
doing anything which creates a nuisance to neighbouring owners or 
occupiers.   If it is evidenced that there has been a persistent breach of 
these conditions then the council as landlord will take enforcement action 
including commencing forfeiture proceedings to terminate the lease. This 
will be in addition to any planning or environmental enforcement activity 
undertaken by the council’s statutory teams. It is also proposed that the new 
lease specifically precludes open air amplified live music or DJ sessions in 
the evening. 
 

23. The existing planning permission is time limited and ends at the end of June 
2020. In order to continue operating after that, Spark will need to obtain a 
time limit extension from the local planning authority.   They intend to submit 

Page 14



 

this application to the LPA in the coming months. It is proposed that no 
further/new lease will be granted unless:  
 

(i) Spark  submit the necessary planning application by April 2020 and  
(ii) by 30th June 2020 obtain a further/extended planning permission by 

July 2020 that would cover the term of the proposed further lease until  
31st March 2022.  Normally Breach of Condition Notices give the 
occupier a minimum of 90 days/3 months to comply with the specified 
breach(es) and the LPA’s normal processing time for a planning 
application is 8 weeks  

 
24. Spark will be responsible for clearing the site upon their vacation at the end 

of the lease period. 
 

Consultation  
 

25. The council previously consulted with Make It York and The York BiD who 
are supportive of the proposal. No formal public consultation has been 
undertaken but the views of customers and local residents have been taken 
into account. 
 

Council Plan  
 

26. The proposal accords with the Council Plan 2019-2023 key outcome of 
“Well paid jobs and an inclusive economy”. 

 
 

Implications 
 

27. The following implications have been identified: 
 

(a) Financial – The recommended option would involve the Council 
receiving the rental payments outlined within the report.  No further 
capital expenditure is envisaged. 

  
(b) Human Resources – There are no human resource implications.    

 
(c) Equalities – There are considered to be no equalities implications.  

 
(d) Legal – Comments from Legal Services have already been 

incorporated above.   
 

Page 15



 

The Council has statutory power to dispose of (including by granting a 
lease) of property owned by the Council.  If, after the grant of the 
proposed further lease, the Council as landlord considers that the 
tenant is in breach of the tenant’s obligations in the lease (including to 
comply with planning law) then the council as landlord can take 
enforcement action including commencing forfeiture proceedings to 
terminate the lease. (This would be additional to, and separate from, 
any regulatory enforcement action for breaches of planning law, 
environmental law or licensing law etc that might be undertaken by the 
relevant departments). 

 
(e) Crime and Disorder – Continued use of the site reduces the risk of 

anti-social behaviour that is attached to vacant sites. The continued  
use of the development requires planning permission, and the 
application would be considered in consultation with statutory 
authorities   

 
(f) Information Technology – There are no information technology 

implications. 
 

(g) Property – covered in the report. 
    

(h) Other – There are no other implications. 
 
Risk Management 
 
28. The council is offering the renewal of the tenancy subject to Spark:York 

complying with the terms outlined. Whilst Spark have advised they have 
made a small loss in the period of occupancy thus far, this has been due to 
greater than expected capital expenditure and they have continued to 
operate the facility and envisage that the project should turn a profit within 
the third year.   

29. Should Spark:York reject the proposed terms of the lease there is a risk that 
scheme could close before the end of the existing lease. If the company 
went into administration there is a risk that outstanding rents may not be 
paid in full.   

30. In that scenario the assets of the company lie largely in the converted 
shipping containers and their ability to be transported and used elsewhere 
would mean they were not left on the site indefinitely.     

 

Page 16



 

 
 
Contact Details 
 
Authors: 
 
Tracey Carter 
Assistant Director for 
Regeneration and Asset 
Management 
Tel: 01904 553 419 
 
Nicholas Collins 
Head of Commercial & 
Operational Asset 
Management 
Tel 01904 552167 

 
 
 
 
 
Chief Officer responsible for the report:  
 
Neil Ferris  
Director of Economy and Place 
Tel: 01904 551 448 
 
 

Report Approved √ Date 06/02/20  
 
 
 
 

 
  
Specialist Implications Officer(s)  List information for all 
 
Financial                                             Legal 
Patrick Looker                                      Gerard Allen 
Corporate Finance Manager                Senior Solicitor, Property 
Tel: 01904 55                                       Tel: 01904 552004 
 
 

Wards Affected:  Guildhall  All √    
 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
Annexes 
Annex 1 – Map of 17-21 Piccadilly  

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Sta

Rest Garden

ESS

Car Park

Car Park

Dix
on

's Y
ard

El

ESS

ROAD

PICCADILLY

2

11a

38

53

1

46

34

5

44

2

The Gatehouse

39

6 to 8

29b

1

2

4

58

2

4

Car Park

9

House

2

4

Government
Office

21

2

House

41

31

1 to 3

Malt

25

Merchants

7

PH 28

Strand

32a

The

3

1 to 7

Court

5

John Walker
House

7

1 & 2

15b & c

St Denys
Court

6

8

Foss Bridge

1 to 27

54

27

42

34

4

Hotel

8

50

Church1

Gibson House

31

3
Place

42

9

Building
Mayfair House

29

19

24

Saxby

5 to 14

40

27

Nelsons
Yard

1 to 14

60

1 to 5House

30 to 34

43

Shelters
22a

ESS

46a

Piccadilly
Lofts

Covent House

1 to 12

52

23

6

58 to 60

1 to 3

32

13 2411

28a

40

1 to 10

5

37

6

5 to 7

59

Ryedale

4 Shovel

35

House

Yard

York

PH

Hall

United House

Mawsons Court

4

5033

/
SCALE 1:1,250

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 100020818

Drawing No.Originating Group:
DRAWN BY: DATE: 03/02/2020

Asset & Property  
Management

Asset & Property Management
KLM

17 - 21 Piccadilly, York.

Annex 1
Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 13/01/2020 Decision Session - Executive Member for Finance and Performance [previously Executive Leader (inc. Finance & Performance)]
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 15/01/2020 Decision Session - Executive Leader (incorporating Policy, Strategy and Partnerships)
	Minutes


	4 Proposal to offer a conditional 2 year lease extension to Spark:York for 17-21 Piccadilly
	Annex 1 - 17-21 Piccadilly


